
 

Lloyd White 
Head of Democratic Services 
London Borough of Hillingdon, 
3E/05, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW 
www.hillingdon.gov.uk 

   

Petition Hearing - 
Cabinet Member 
for Planning, 
Transportation 
and Recycling 

 

   

Date: WEDNESDAY, 21 MARCH 
2012 
 

Time: 7.00 PM 
 

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 3 - 
CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH 
STREET, UXBRIDGE UB8 
1UW 
 

  
Meeting 
Details: 

Members of the Public and 
Press are welcome to attend 
this meeting  
 

 

 
Cabinet Member hearing the petitions:  
 
Keith Burrows, Cabinet Member for 
Planning, Transportation and Recycling 
 
How the hearing works:  
 
The petition organiser (or his/her 
nominee) can address the Cabinet 
Member for a short time and in turn the 
Cabinet Member may also ask questions.  
 
Local ward councillors are invited to these 
hearings and may also be in attendance 
to support or listen to your views.  
 
After hearing all the views expressed, the 
Cabinet Member will make a formal 
decision. This decision will be published 
and sent to the petition organisers shortly 
after the meeting confirming the action to 
be taken by the Council. 
 

  
Published: Tuesday, 13 March 2012 

This agenda and associated 
reports can be made available 
in other languages, in braille, 
large print or on audio tape.  
Please contact us for further 
information.  

 Contact:  Natasha Dogra 
Tel: 01895 277488 
Fax: 01895 277373 
Email: ndogra@hillingdon.gov.uk 

 
This Agenda is available online at:  
http://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=252&MId=1026&Ver=4 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 
 

 

Useful information 
 
Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at 
the Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station, 
with the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a 
short walk away. Limited parking is available at 
the Civic Centre. For details on availability and 
how to book a parking space, please contact 
Democratic Services 
 
Please enter from the Council’s main reception 
where you will be directed to the Committee 
Room. An Induction Loop System is available for 
use in the various meeting rooms. Please contact 
us for further information.  
 
Please switch off any mobile telephones and 
BlackBerries™ before the meeting. Any 
recording of the meeting is not allowed, either 
using electronic, mobile or visual devices.  
 
If there is a FIRE in the building the alarm will 
sound continuously. If there is a BOMB ALERT 
the alarm sounds intermittently. Please make your way to the nearest FIRE EXIT.    
 

 



 

Agenda 
 
 
 

 
CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS MAY ATTEND 
1 To confirm that the business of the meeting will take place in public. 

2 To consider the report of the officers on the following petitions received.  

 Please note that individual petitions may overrun their time slots.  Although individual petitions 
may start later than advertised, they will not start any earlier than the advertised time.   

 

 Start  
Time Title of Report Ward Page 

3 7pm Great Benty - Petition requesting the removal 
of grassed verges to be replaced with parking 
bays. 
 

West Drayton 1 - 6 
 

4 7pm Charville Lane and Grosvenor Avenue: 
Petition requesting traffic calming measures 
 

Charville 7 - 12 
 

5 7.30pm Long Drive - Petition requesting additional 
traffic calming measures. 
 

South Ruislip 13 - 18 
 

6 8pm Northwood High Street - Petition requesting a 
residents' parking scheme 
 

Northwood 19 - 24 
 

7 8pm 
 

Candover Close - Petition requesting a 
residents' parking scheme. 
 

Heathrow 
Villages 

25 - 30 
 

8 8.30pm Airdrie Close & West Quay Drive - Petition 
requesting to 'stop up' adopted public 
footpath. 
 

Yeading 31 - 60 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



Cabinet Member Petition Hearing                                        Part 1 – Members, Public & Press 

GREAT BENTY, WEST DRAYTON – PETITION 
REQUESTING THE REMOVAL OF THE GRASSED 
VERGES TO BE REPLACED WITH PARKING BAYS. 

 

 
Cabinet Member  Councillor Keith Burrows 
   
Cabinet Portfolio  Cabinet Member for Planning, Transportation and Recycling 
   
Officer Contact  Danielle Watson 

Planning, Environment, Education and Community Services 
   
Papers with report  Appendix A 
 
HEADLINE INFORMATION 
 
Purpose of report 
 

 To inform the Cabinet Member that a petition of 32 signatures has 
been received from residents of Great Benty requesting the 
removal of the grassed verges to be replaced with parking bays. 

   
Contribution to our 
plans and strategies 

 The request can be considered as part of the Council’s Road 
Safety Programme. 

   
Financial Cost  There are none associated with the recommendations to this 

report. 
   
Relevant Policy 
Overview Committee 

 Residents and Environmental Services 

   
Ward(s) affected 
 

 West Drayton 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Cabinet Member: 
 
1. Meets and discusses with petitioners their request for removal of grass verges to 
be replaced with parking bays. 
 
2. Subject to the outcome of the discussions with petitioners, asks officers to carry 
out a parking stress survey in Great Benty and report back to the Cabinet Member before 
considering any further actions. 
 
INFORMATION 
 
Reasons for recommendation 
 
To investigate in further detail the request of petitioners. 
 
Alternative options considered / Risk Management 
 
These can be identified from the discussions with the petitioners.  

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



Cabinet Member Petition Hearing                                        Part 1 – Members, Public & Press 

 
Policy Overview Committee Comments 
 
None at this stage 
 
Supporting Information 

 
1. A petition with 32 signatures has been received from residents living in Great Benty, 
West Drayton which represents 32% of households in this part of the road under the following 
heading: 
 
‘We the undersigned would like Hillingdon Borough Council to improve parking conditions in 
Great Benty, West Drayton, Middlesex.  We would like the grass areas to be replaced with 
parking bays.’ 
 
2. Great Benty is a residential road within the West Drayton area.  The location is shown on 
the plan attached as Appendix A to this report.  Great Benty has a carriageway width of 
approximately 5.4 metres and parking is unrestricted on either side.  Some residents have had 
their kerbs dropped to provide access to off-street parking.   
 
3. The petitioners have requested that the grass areas are replaced with parking bays, but 
the precise details of the petitioners’ request is unknown.  The Cabinet Member will be aware 
that there are no specific funds set aside to convert grass verges in this way, and the costs can 
be considerable as any such areas have to be designed to be sufficiently strong to stand vehicle 
loads. The Cabinet Member will also be aware that experience has shown in other areas across 
the borough that loss of ‘green spaces’ is not always popular with the local community.   
 
4.  It is therefore recommended that the Cabinet Member discusses in more detail with 
petitioners their concerns and subject to the outcome of these discussions asks officers to 
conduct a parking stress survey to establish parking trends.  From the information collected it is 
suggested that options are developed to address residents’ concerns and discussed with the 
Cabinet Member and his Ward Member colleagues. 
 
Financial Implications 
 
There are none associated with the recommendations to this report.  However, if suitable 
options are identified to address residents’ concerns, funding will need to be identified. 
 
EFFECT ON RESIDENTS, SERVICE USERS & COMMUNITIES 
 
What will be the effect of the recommendation? 
 
To allow the Cabinet Member to discuss in detail with petitioners their concerns with parking in 
Great Benty, West Drayton 
 
Consultation Carried Out or Required 
 
None at this stage 
 
CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS 
 
Legal 
 

Page 2



Cabinet Member Petition Hearing                                        Part 1 – Members, Public & Press 

There are no special legal implications for the proposal, which amounts to an informal 
consultation. A meeting with the petitioners is perfectly legitimate as part of a listening exercise, 
especially where consideration of the policy, factual and engineering issues are still at a 
formative stage. Fairness and natural justice requires that there must be no predetermination of 
a decision in advance of any wider non-statutory consultation. 
 
In considering any informal consultation responses, decision makers must ensure there is a full 
consideration of all representations arising including those which do not accord with the officer 
recommendation. Accordingly, the Council must balance the concerns of the objectors with its 
statutory duty to secure the expeditious, convenient and safe movement of vehicular and other 
traffic. The decision maker must be satisfied that responses from the public are conscientiously 
taken into account. 
 
Corporate Property and Construction 
 
Corporate Property and Construction is in support of the recommendations in this report 
  
Relevant Service Groups 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Petition received – 6th September 2011 
 

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



Cabinet Member Petition Hearing                                             Part 1 – Members, Public & Press 

CHARVILLE LANE & GROSVENOR AVENUE, HAYES – 
PETITION REQUESTING TRAFFIC CALMING 
MEASURES 

 

 
Cabinet Member(s)  Councillor Keith Burrows 
   
Cabinet Portfolio(s)  Planning, Transportation and Recycling 
   
Officer Contact(s)  Catherine Freeman 

Planning, Environment, Education and Community Services 
   
Papers with report  Appendix A  
 
1. HEADLINE INFORMATION 
 
Summary  
 

 To inform the Cabinet Member that a petition of 20 signatures has 
been received from residents requesting traffic calming measures 
on Charville Lane and Grosvenor Avenue 
 

   
Contribution to our 
plans and strategies 

 • Transport Strategy 
• Local Implementation Plan 
• Community Plan 

   
Financial Cost  There are no financial implications to this report 
   
Relevant Policy 
Overview Committee 

 Residents’ & Environmental Services 

   
Ward(s) affected 
 

 Charville  

 
 
2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Cabinet Member: 
 
1. Meets with the petitioners and considers their request for traffic calming measures 
on Charville Lane and Grosvenor Avenue  
 
2. Notes the ongoing works to develop proposals for traffic calming measures in 
Charville Lane  
 
 
3. Subject to (1) asks officers to include this request on the Council’s Road Safety 
Programme for further investigation and the development of possible options 
 
4. Subject to (1) instructs officers to liaise with the Police and local Safer 
Neighbourhoods teams to investigate and if appropriate undertake some local 
enforcement   
 
 

Agenda Item 4

Page 7



Cabinet Member Petition Hearing                                             Part 1 – Members, Public & Press 

Reasons for recommendation 
 
The petition hearing will provide a valuable opportunity to hear directly from the petitioners of 
their concerns and suggestions 
 
Alternative options considered / risk management 
 
These can be discussed in greater detail with petitioners  
 
Policy Overview Committee comments 
 
None at this stage 
 
3. INFORMATION 
 
Supporting Information 
 
1. A petition with 20 signatures has been submitted to the Council under the following 
heading “We, the undersigned, are extremely fearful for the safety of pedestrians and other 
motorists due to the speed at which vehicles travel along Charville Lane and Grosvenor 
Avenue. This has created a rat-run on our estate that is unsafe for all concerned. We have 
submitted petitions in the past to no avail. We once again call on the Cabinet Member for 
Planning,Transportation [and Recycling] to take our concerns seriously and to install traffic 
calming measures to assist in tackling the speeding that takes place along these roads”.  
 
2. A plan showing the location of Charville Road and Grosvenor Avenue is attached as 
Appendix A to this report. These are predominately residential roads which form an indirect link 
between Uxbridge Road and Kingshill Avenue via Pole Hill Road.  
 
3. As the Cabinet Member will be aware, the Council received a petition with 187 signatures 
from local residents in November 2008 concerning the speed and volume of vehicles using 
Charville Lane, Langdale Drive and Grosvenor Avenue.   
 
4. The Cabinet Member will also recall hearing a petition at Charville Primary School in 
November 2011, at which school pupils and staff made suggestions for traffic calming measures 
in Charville Lane.  
 
5. Following the earlier petition, the Council has undertaken surveys and is currently 
developing proposals to improve road safety in the area. However, it is suggested that the 
Cabinet Member meets with the petitioners to discuss in greater detail their continuing concerns 
with speeding traffic and endeavour to determine options that officers could include in their 
current investigations as part of the Road Safety Programme, that may have the support of 
residents, the emergency services and bus operators. 
 
6. The Cabinet Member will also be aware that officers often liaise with the Safer 
Neighbourhood Teams (Metropolitan Police Service) and it is therefore suggested that input be 
sought from the Safer Neighbourhood Team responsible for the Charville Ward who have 
signed this petition.  
 
Financial Implications 
 
There are none associated with the recommendations to this report. The investigation of 
feasible measures can be carried out with in-house resources. However, if measures are 

Page 8



Cabinet Member Petition Hearing                                             Part 1 – Members, Public & Press 

introduced in Charville Road and Grosvenor Avenue, a budget will need to be identified but the 
cost will not be known until the final details have been agreed.  
 
4. EFFECT ON RESIDENTS, SERVICE USERS & COMMUNITIES 
 
What will be the effect of the recommendation? 
 
It will allow further consideration of the petitioners’ concerns.  
 
5. CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS 
 
Legal 
 
There are no special legal implications for the proposal, which amounts to an informal 
consultation. A meeting with the petitioners is perfectly legitimate as part of a listening exercise, 
especially where consideration of the policy and factual issues are still at a formative 
stage. Fairness and natural justice requires that there must be no predetermination of a 
decision in advance of any wider non-statutory consultation. 
 
Accordingly, the Council must balance the concerns of the objectors with its statutory duty to 
secure the expeditious, convenient and safe movement of vehicular and other traffic. The decision 
maker must be satisfied that responses from the public are conscientiously taken into account. 
 
Should the outcome of the informal discussions with petitioners require that Officers include the 
Petitioners request in a subsequent review of possible options under the Council’s Road Safety 
Programme and a consultation be carried out when resources permit there will need to be 
consideration of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, the Traffic Signs Regulations and 
General Directions 2002, which govern road traffic orders, traffic signs and road markings. If 
specific advice is required in relation to the exercise of individual powers Legal Services should 
be instructed 
 
Corporate Property and Construction 
 

There are no property or construction implications at this stage.  
 
Relevant Service Groups 
 
None at this stage 
 
6. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

• Petition requesting a traffic calming scheme and parking controls on Charville Lane, 
Langdale Drive & Grosvenor Avenue, Hayes, received February 2008  

• Petition requesting traffic calming measures on Charville Lane and Grosvenor Avenue, 
received October 2011  

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



Cabinet Member Petition Hearing                                        Part 1 – Members, Public & Press 
 

TITLE: LONG DRIVE, RUISLIP - PETITION 
REQUESTING ADDITIONAL TRAFFIC CALMING 

 

 
Cabinet Member  Cllr Keith Burrows 
   
Cabinet Portfolio  Planning, Transportation & Recycling 
   
Officer Contact  Caroline Haywood  

Planning, Environment, Education and Community Services 
   
Papers with report  Appendix A  
 
HEADLINE INFORMATION 
 
Purpose of report 
 

 To inform the Cabinet Member of a petition requesting the raised 
tables installed in Long Drive, Ruislip are extended along the rest 
of the road. 

   
Contribution to our 
plans and strategies 

 The request can be considered as part of the strategy for on street 
parking controls and the Council’s annual programme of road 
safety initiatives. 

   
Financial Cost  There are none associated with this report.  
   
Relevant Policy 
Overview Committee 

 Residents’ & Environmental Services 

   
Ward(s) affected 
 

 South Ruislip 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Cabinet Member: 
 

1. Considers the petitioners’ request and discusses with them in detail their 
concerns with speeding; 

 
2. Asks officers to conduct a 24 hour / seven day speed and volume survey in the 
section of Long Drive between Queens Walk and The Fairway and report back to the 
Cabinet Member and Ward Members:   

 
3. Subject to the concerns raised by petitioners and the results of the survey, asks 
officers to investigate possible options under the Road Safety Programme when 
resources permit. 

 
INFORMATION 
 
Reasons for recommendation 
 
To allow the Cabinet Member to discuss in detail with petitioners their concerns. The success of 
traffic measures which address speeding are largely acceptable to local residents. These can 

Agenda Item 5

Page 13



Cabinet Member Petition Hearing                                        Part 1 – Members, Public & Press 
 

be identified with petitioners for further detailed investigation by officers within the Road Safety 
Programme.    
 
Alternative options considered / risk management 
 
These can be discussed with petitioners. 
 
Comments of Policy Overview Committee(s) 
 
Supporting Information 
 
1. A petition with 34 signatures has been submitted to the Council from the residents of 
Long Drive between Queen’s Walk and The Fairway, Ruislip in the form of a standard letter 
signed by each household and returned to the lead petitioner. The petition heading is as follows 
‘….to make our road a safer place by hopefully extending the speed bumps further up Long 
Drive.’ 
 
2. Long Drive is a residential road situated within South Ruislip Ward. The road may be 
effectively divided into two sections at Queen’s Walk. The northern section between Field End 
Road and Queen’s Walk has three raised tables which were installed in March 2011 following 
requests from residents concerned with road safety. The southern section of Long Drive 
between The Fairway and Queens Walk, where the majority of the householders who signed 
the petition live, has no physical traffic calming measures, but is within the South Ruislip 
Parking Management Scheme. A plan of the area is shown on Appendix A.  
 
3. The police reported personal injury accident data records for the 36 month period ending 
January 2012 shows there have been one accident in Long Drive between The Fairway and 
Queen’s Walk. The accident involved a lone motorcycle, who lost control in wet weather. 

 
4. Funding for traffic calming schemes where there is a high level of accidents is generally 
supported by Transport for London (TfL).  The case for traffic calming measures can be 
supported by accident data and one of the standard criteria is six or more police reported 
personal injury accidents at the site of the proposed scheme. Long Drive with one slight 
personal injury accident therefore does not meet these criteria.  
 
5. The Cabinet Member will, however, be aware that the Council’s Road Safety Programme 
is a special capital budget, which the Council has available to implement measures where there 
are lower numbers of recorded accidents, and the programme can accommodate schemes 
developed with the benefit of local input. All schemes and funding is agreed by the Cabinet 
Member.  
 
6. It is suggested therefore that the Cabinet Member discusses with the petitioners their 
specific concerns with road safety and endeavours to determine options that officers could 
investigate in detail as part of the Road Safety Programme. 
 
7. The section of Long Drive between Queen’s Walk and The Fairway benefits from a 
parking management scheme. This has resulted in less cars being parked on Long Drive which 
may have resulted in increased vehicle speeds. However should measures be identified 
residents will need to appreciate that they may be at the expense of some parking.     
 
8. The Cabinet Member will be aware that in similar requests in the past, he has instructed 
officers to undertake an independent 24 hour, 7 day traffic speed and volume survey and 
depending on the results determines the case for further studies. 

Page 14



Cabinet Member Petition Hearing                                        Part 1 – Members, Public & Press 
 

 
Financial Implications 
 
There are none associated with the recommendations to this report, as feasibility studies can be 
undertaken with in house resources. However if the Cabinet Member subsequently considers 
the introduction of a scheme suitable funding will need to be identified. 
 
EFFECT ON RESIDENTS, SERVICE USERS & COMMUNITIES 
 
What will be the effect of the recommendation? 
 
The recommendations will identify the extent of the petitioners concerns and look at possible 
solutions to mitigate these.   
 
Consultation Carried Out or Required 
 
No further consultations have been carried out as a result of this petition. 
 
CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS 
 
Legal 
There are no special legal implications for the proposal, which amounts to an informal 
consultation. A meeting with the petitioners is perfectly legitimate as part of a listening exercise, 
especially where consideration of the policy and factual issues are still at a formative 
stage. Fairness and natural justice requires that there must be no predetermination of a 
decision in advance of any wider non-statutory consultation. 
 
Accordingly, the Council must balance the concerns of the objectors with its statutory duty to 
secure the expeditious, convenient and safe movement of vehicular and other traffic. The decision 
maker must be satisfied that responses from the public are conscientiously taken into account. 
 
Should the outcome of the informal discussions with petitioners require that Officers include the 
Petitioners request in a subsequent review of possible options under the Council’s Road Safety 
Programme and a consultation be carried out when resources permit there will need to be 
consideration of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, the Traffic Signs Regulations and 
General Directions 2002, which govern road traffic orders, traffic signs and road markings. If 
specific advice is required in relation to the exercise of individual powers Legal Services should 
be instructed. 
 
Corporate Property & Construction 
 
Corporate Property and Construction is in support of the recommendations in this report. 
 
Relevant Service Groups 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Petition received: 19th September 2011 

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 17



Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank



Cabinet Member Petition Hearing                                        Part 1 – Members, Public & Press 

HIGH STREET, NORTHWOOD – PETITION 
REQUESTING A RESIDENTS’ PARKING SCHEME 

 

 
Cabinet Member  Councillor Keith Burrows 
   
Cabinet Portfolio  Cabinet Member for Planning, Transportation and Recycling 
   
Officer Contact  Danielle Watson 

Planning, Environment, Education and Community Services 
   
Papers with report  Appendix A  
 
HEADLINE INFORMATION 
 
Purpose of report 
 

 To inform the Cabinet Member that a petition has been received 
from residents living in Northwood asking the Council to introduce 
‘resident only parking’ in High Street, Northwood.  

   
Contribution to our 
plans and strategies 

 The request can be considered in relation to the Council’s strategy 
for on-street parking controls. 

   
Financial Cost  There are none associated with the recommendations to this 

report. 
   
Relevant Policy 
Overview Committee 

 Residents and Environmental Services 

   
Ward(s) affected 
 

 Northwood  

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Cabinet Member; 
 
1. Meets and discusses with petitioners their concerns with parking in High Street, 
Northwood. 
 
2. Subject to the outcome of the discussions with petitioners and if appropriate, asks 
officers to add the request to the Council’s overall parking programme so consultation 
can be carried out on a parking scheme when resources permit. 
 
INFORMATION 
 
Reasons for recommendation 
 
To allow the Cabinet Member to discuss with petitioners their concerns 
 
Alternative options considered / Risk Management 
 
None at this stage, as residents have requested a residents parking scheme.  However, further 
options could arise from the discussion with petitioners. 
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 19



Cabinet Member Petition Hearing                                        Part 1 – Members, Public & Press 

Policy Overview Committee comments 
 
None at this stage 
 
Supporting Information 

 
1. A petition with 40 signatures has been received from residents of Northwood under the 
following heading: 
 
‘We, the undersigned request that Hillingdon Council consider adopting High Street, Northwood 
into the residents’ parking scheme’. 
 
Of the signatures received, 22 were from residents of High Street, Northwood whilst the rest 
appear to be from residents of nearby roads. 
 
2. High Street, Northwood forms part of the A4125 and is a mixture of residential properties 
which are mainly located on the west side of the road and commercial properties to the east 
side of the road with some residential accommodation above. The location of High Street 
Northwood is attached as Appendix A to this report. In front of the businesses there are parking 
areas inset into the footway that provides parking between Monday to Friday, 8am – 6.30pm to 
a maximum stay of 2 hours. Many of the residential properties in the High Street have had 
dropped kerbs constructed to provide access to off-street parking. 
 
3. High Street, Northwood is one of Hillingdon’s main distributor roads served by two bus 
routes, the 282 and H11, and is part of the emergency services route network. The High Street 
is on the periphery of the existing Northwood Parking Management Scheme that is operational 
Monday to Friday 1pm - 2pm and benefits from many local amenities including local shops, 
schools, and places of worship which is why it could be an attractive place for non-residents to 
park.  It should be remembered however, that if the High Street were included in an extension to 
the existing Northwood Parking Management Scheme by law every section of road is required 
to be marked with either parking places or yellow lines.  
 
4.       The Cabinet Member will be aware there is a heavy programme of parking schemes 
and recently has considered reports for the completion of the current parking scheme 
programme.  Following discussions with the petitioners, the Cabinet Member could decide a 
scheme for High Street, Northwood can be added to future parking scheme programme. 
 
5.       It is therefore recommended that the Cabinet Member meets and discusses with 
petitioners their concerns and subject to the outcome asks Officers to add the request to the 
Council’s overall parking programme so consultation can be carried with local residents and 
businesses of High Street, Northwood. However, should the Cabinet Member agree with the 
recommendations laid out in this report, an informal consultation will show the level of support 
for a resident parking scheme in the High Street whilst at the same time giving those most 
affected an opportunity to comment on parking proposals. It is the Council’s practice not to 
introduce controlled parking schemes if they do not receive the support of those most affected. 
 
Financial Implications 
 
There are none associated with the recommendations in this report.  However if subsequently 
the Council were to consider the introduction of a parking scheme in High Street, Northwood 
suitable funding opportunities will be identified to fund the consultation and subsequent 
implementation. 
 
 

Page 20



Cabinet Member Petition Hearing                                        Part 1 – Members, Public & Press 

EFFECT ON RESIDENTS, SERVICE USERS & COMMUNITIES 
 
What will be the effect of the recommendation? 
 
To allow the Cabinet Member to discuss in detail with petitioners their concerns with parking in 
High Street, Northwood. 
 
Consultation Carried Out or Required 
 
None at this stage 
 
CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS 
 
Legal 
 
There no are no special legal implications for the proposal, which amounts to an informal 
consultation. A meeting with the petitioners is perfectly legitimate as part of a listening exercise, 
especially where consideration of the policy and factual issues are still at a formative 
stage. Fairness and natural justice requires that there must be no predetermination of a 
decision in advance of any wider non-statutory consultation. 
 
Accordingly, the Council must balance the concerns of the objectors with its statutory duty to 
secure the expeditious, convenient and safe movement of vehicular and other traffic. The decision 
maker must be satisfied that responses from the public are conscientiously taken into account. 
 
Should the outcome of the informal discussions with petitioners require that Officers include the 
Petitioners request in a subsequent review of the Council’s on street parking strategy and a 
consultation be carried out when resources permit there will need to be consideration of the 
Highways Act 1980, the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, the Traffic Signs Regulations and 
General Directions 2002, which govern road traffic orders, traffic signs and road markings. If 
specific advice is required in relation to the exercise of individual powers Legal Services should 
be instructed. 
 
Corporate Property and Construction 
 
Corporate Property and Construction is in support of the recommendations in this report. 
 
Relevant Service Groups 
 
None 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Petition received –  26th September 2011 
 
 

Page 21



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 23



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



Cabinet Member Petition Hearing                                        Part 1 – Members, Public & Press 

CANDOVER CLOSE, HARMONDSWORTH – PETITION 
REQUESTING A RESIDENTS PARKING SCHEME 

 

 
Cabinet Member  Councillor Keith Burrows 
   
Cabinet Portfolio  Cabinet Member for Planning, Transportation and Recycling 
   
Officer Contact  Danielle Watson 

Planning, Environment, Education and Community Services 
   
Papers with report  Appendix A  
 
HEADLINE INFORMATION 
 
Purpose of report 
 

 To inform the Cabinet Member that a petition has been received 
from residents living in Candover Close, Harmondsworth asking 
the Council to introduce ‘resident only parking’ in their road.  This 
request can be considered in relation to the Council’s programme 
for the introduction of managed parking schemes. 

   
Contribution to our 
plans and strategies 

 The request can be considered in relation to the Council’s strategy 
for on-street parking controls. 

   
Financial Cost  There are none associated with the recommendations to this 

report. 
   
Relevant Policy 
Overview Committee 

 Residents and Environmental Services 

   
Ward(s) affected 
 

 Heathrow Villages  

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Cabinet Member; 
 
1. Meets and discusses with petitioners their concerns with parking in Candover 
Close, Harmondsworth. 
 
2. Subject to the outcome of the discussions with petitioners, asks officers to include 
the request in a subsequent review of the Heathrow Parking Management Scheme. 
 
INFORMATION 
 
Reasons for recommendation 
 
To allow the Cabinet Member to discuss with petitioners their concerns and if appropriate to 
include Candover Close in a subsequent review of the Heathrow Parking Management Scheme.  
 
Alternative options considered / Risk Management 
 
None at this stage 

Agenda Item 7

Page 25



Cabinet Member Petition Hearing                                        Part 1 – Members, Public & Press 

 
Policy Overview Committee comments 
 
None at this stage 
 
Supporting Information 

 
1.  A petition with 35 signatures has been received from residents of Candover Close, 
Harmondsworth, which represents 54% of household in the road under the following heading: 
 
‘We the undersigned wish to apply for residents parking in Candover Close, Harmondsworth.  
Parking within the Close has become almost impossible at times, it is a potential hazard to 
emergency vehicles and residents alike.’ 
 
2.        Candover Close is a residential cul-de-sac situated east of Hatch Lane, Harmondsworth 
with 39 properties.  Attached as Appendix A is a plan indicating the location of Candover Close. 
 
3. In December 2006 residents of Candover Close were consulted on options to control 
parking in their road as part of a previous review of the Heathrow Parking Management 
Scheme.  Responses received during this consultation indicated little support to change parking 
arrangements in their road.  However, the Cabinet Member will be aware, it has often become 
apparent where parking schemes have been introduced that adjoining roads that do not 
perhaps suffer unduly from non-residential parking decide not to be included.  The Heathrow 
Parking Management Scheme has been extended over the years and following inclusion of 
nearby roads, residents may now be experiencing parking transfer and therefore have 
approached the Council to part of a scheme. 
 
4.       Candover Close currently has a footway parking exemption which was requested in a 
petition from residents in January 1997, as a result parking enforcement has been suspending 
pending installation of a formal scheme.  There have recently been proposals for ‘at any time’ 
restrictions on the junction, however objections have been received to these proposals which 
will be reported to the Cabinet Member in a separate report for his consideration. 
 
5.       It is therefore recommended that the Cabinet Member meets and discusses with 
petitioners their concerns and subject to the outcome asks Officers to add the request to the 
subsequent review of the Heathrow Parking Management Scheme.  
 
Financial Implications 
 
There are none associated with the recommendations in this report.  However if subsequently 
the Council were to consider the introduction of a Parking Management Scheme in Candover 
Close as requested, an allocation would be required from a surplus of the Parking Revenue 
Account to fund the consultation and subsequent implementation. 
 
EFFECT ON RESIDENTS, SERVICE USERS & COMMUNITIES 
 
What will be the effect of the recommendation? 
 
To allow the Cabinet Member to discuss in detail with petitioners their concerns with parking in 
Candover Close, Harmondsworth. 
 
 
 
 

Page 26



Cabinet Member Petition Hearing                                        Part 1 – Members, Public & Press 

CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS 
 
Legal 
 
There are no special legal implications for the proposal, which amounts to an informal 
consultation. A meeting with the petitioners is perfectly legitimate as part of a listening exercise, 
especially where consideration of the policy, factual and engineering issues are still at a 
formative stage. Fairness and natural justice requires that there must be no predetermination of 
a decision in advance of any wider non-statutory consultation. 
 
In considering any informal consultation responses, decision makers must ensure there is a full 
consideration of all representations arising including those which do not accord with the officer 
recommendation. Accordingly, the Council must balance the concerns of the objectors with its 
statutory duty to secure the expeditious, convenient and safe movement of vehicular and other 
traffic. The decision maker must be satisfied that responses from the public are conscientiously 
taken into account. 
 
Should the outcome of the informal discussions with petitioners require that Officers include the 
Petitioners request in a subsequent review of the Heathrow Parking Management Scheme there 
will need to be consideration of Highways Act 1980, the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, the 
Traffic Signs Regulations and General Directions 2002, which govern road traffic orders, traffic 
signs and road markings. If specific advice is required in relation to the exercise of individual 
powers Legal Services should be instructed. 
 
Corporate Property and Construction 
 
Corporate Property and Construction is in support of the recommendations in this report 
 
Relevant Service Groups 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Petition received – 14th November 2011 
 
Petition received – January 1997 

Page 27



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 29



Page 30

This page is intentionally left blank



Cabinet Member Petition Hearing                                        Part 1 – Members, Public & Press 

AIRDRIE CLOSE & WEST QUAY DRIVE, YEADING - PETITION 
REQUEST TO 'STOP UP' ADOPTED PUBLIC FOOTPATH 
 
Cabinet Member  Councillor Keith Burrows 
   
Cabinet Portfolio  Cabinet Member for Planning, Transportation and Recycling  
   
Officer Contact  John Fern 

Planning, Environment, Education and Community Services 
   
Papers with report  Appendix A 

 
HEADLINE INFORMATION 
 
Purpose of report 
 

 To inform the Cabinet Member that a Petition has been received 
asking for the adopted public footpath that runs between Airdrie 
Close And West Quay Drive, Yeading to be ‘stopped up’. 

   
Contribution to our 
plans and strategies 

 The request can be considered as part of the Council’s Road Safety 
Programme 

   
Financial Cost  Approximately £200 for consultation.  There would be substantial 

additional costs involved to ‘stop up’ the highway. 
   
Relevant Policy 
Overview Committee 

 Residents’ and Environmental Services 

   
Ward(s) affected 
 

 Yeading 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Cabinet Member;- 
 

1. Meets and discusses with petitioners their request for the adopted public footpath 
to be ‘stopped up’. 

 
2. Subject to the outcome of 1 above, considers the Petitioners request together with 

the advice given in the report by Officers and the Councils Legal Team and 
instructs Officers to carry out an informal consultation with residents to establish 
a wider residential view and report the results to the Cabinet Member. 

 
INFORMATION 
 
Reasons for recommendation 
 
To allow the Cabinet Member the opportunity to discuss with the petitioner the concerns over 
the Council’s legal obligation as the Highway Authority to protect the rights of the public to use 
the adopted public highway. 

Agenda Item 8

Page 31



Cabinet Member Petition Hearing                                        Part 1 – Members, Public & Press 

 
Alternative options considered 
 
There are no alternatives to consider as the Council will have taken all appropriate steps to 
ensure that the views of all persons who may be affected by a decision have been consulted 
before taking the appropriate action. 
 
Comments of Policy Overview Committee(s) 
 
None at this stage. 
 
Supporting Information 

 
1.   A Petition with 32 Signatures was submitted to the Council under the following heading 
“Residents petition to keep the footpath between 7 & 8 Airdrie Close, Yeading fenced off”. 
 
2. The Glencoe Estate was developed in around 1995 and Airdrie Close was adopted in early 
1996 together with a footpath that joins Airdrie Close with West Quay Drive.  Other such footpaths 
throughout the estate were also adopted at the same time. 
 
3. The footpath has a tarmac surface and street lighting at the Airdrie Close end and was 
constructed to provide residents in various roads and closes on the Glencoe Estate access to 
West Quay Drive and Marina Approach together with the Marina’s with residential moorings and 
restaurant. 
 
4. It is understood that at some time in the past, due to anti social behaviour along the path, 
residents erected a wooden fence across the path thereby blocking its use to the public.   
 
5. In April 2011 the Council received correspondence from Solicitors on behalf of the lead 
Petitioner asking for the footpath to be ‘stopped up’.  This was to enable the lead petitioner who 
lives adjacent to the footpath to purchase the land and incorporate it within his property. 
 
6. The Council replied at that time that they did not wish the footpath to be stopped up and 
thanked the writer for bringing the matter of the obstruction to the Council’s attention.  They said 
that every effort would be made to re-open the path as they have a duty to protect the rights of the 
public to the use and enjoyment of any highway.  The overgrowth would be cut right back which 
would open up the way and make it safe and accessible. 
 
7. In July 2011 the Council has also received a letter of support for the stopping up of this 
footpath from John McDonnell the Member of Parliament for Hayes & Harlington a copy of which is 
attached at Appendix A.  
 
8. Although this footpath has been blocked by residents there is prima facia evidence of use in 
the past.  Officers were of the view that the footpath is necessary and should be retained for the 
benefit of the wider public. The footpath is a convenient route which links the estate roads to the 
north of the footpath to West Quay Drive, Marina Approach and the Marina with its residential 
moorings and restaurant.   
 
9. The Petition Hearing was heard at the Civic Centre on 12th October 2011.  At the hearing the 
petitioner voiced that the matter had been presided over by a Council Committee some years 
earlier however he was not in possession of any exact details at that time. The Cabinet Member 
asked that officers investigate the history to the petitioners claims and that the petition be re-
submitted to a future hearing once this information has been received   
 

Page 32



Cabinet Member Petition Hearing                                        Part 1 – Members, Public & Press 

10.  Following the hearing officers investigated the history to the petitioner’s claims and a 
search was conducted of Council records however no trace of any formal request to ‘stop up’ the 
footpath could be found.  The petition was therefore re-submitted to a future petition hearing on 
22nd February 2012. 
 
11. The Petition Hearing was heard at the Civic Centre on 22nd February 2012.  At the hearing 
the petitioner was informed of the fact that no trace of any Committee Minutes had been found 
relating to the matter. 
 
12. The petitioner presented the Cabinet Member with a letter from the Council dated 2nd 
November 1998 showing that the matter was to be presided over at the Environmental Committee 
on 15th December 1998.  Following this further information the Cabinet Member asked that officers 
investigate this further and that the petition be re-submitted to the next petition hearing in March 
2012. 
 
13. Investigation by officers has found that following a report by officers to the Environmental 
Committee held at the Civic Centre on 15th December 1998 listing residents concerns about this 
footpath in Airdrie Close and listing it within paragraph 16.5 of their report the Committee resolved 
that – ‘when funds become available, approval be given to initiate the formal closure procedure for 
the footpaths listed in paragraph 16.5 of the officers report’.  
 
14. Following this new information being brought to light officers have now obtained further 
Legal advice on the matter.  There are three options available to the Council: - 
 

a) Start procedures through the Courts to stop up the adopted public highway. This could 
leave the Council open to criticism and possible Judicial Review on the grounds that it is not 
reasonable to do so until all relevant considerations have been taken into account.  The 
decision would be based on the view of those in the Petition and not the wider public who 
may be affected The Committee Report previously authorising the stopping up was based 
on evidence dating back to 1998 and not that of the present time. The views of the owner of 
the land would also not have been sought. Given the lapse in time since the previous 
committee report, it is reasonable for the Council to look at the matter afresh taking into 
account all relevant considerations now in play.  

b) Take action to open up the footpath. Once again this could leave the Council open to 
criticism and possible Judicial Review on the grounds that it is not reasonable to do so until 
all relevant considerations have been taken into account. It is important that the views of the 
land owner and the wider community are consulted on before taking these steps particularly 
in light of the fact that the highway has been blocked for a considerable amount of time. 

c) Consult with the land owner and all the residents who would be affected by any decision 
and based on the results of the consultation, advise the Cabinet Member to direct that 
officers should either take the necessary steps to open up the footpath OR to take the 
necessary action to instigate the procedure to ‘stop up’ the adopted public highway – this 
would ensure that the wider public are consulted together with the owner and utility 
companies.  The results would be up to date and the Council will have taken everything into 
account and be able to make an informed decision. 

 
15.  As a result officers are of the opinion that option c) above would ensure that everything has 

been taken into account when considering this matter and that the Council will have acted 
correctly and reasonably in determining the matter.  

   
Planning 
 
There are no planning issues. 
 

Page 33



Cabinet Member Petition Hearing                                        Part 1 – Members, Public & Press 

Safety, Security and Crime 
 
There is no evidence of any anti-social behaviour on this footpath.  The footpath when re-
opened will be cleared back to ensure it is safe and accessible.  The Local Safer 
Neighbourhood Officers will also be informed. 
 
Financial Implications 
 
The financial implications of consultation can be met from existing highways budgets.  Should 
the decision be taken to re-open the footpath and undertake clearance of undergrowth then this 
can also be met from existing highways budgets; However there is no identified budget for 
‘stopping up’ the highway, and therefore a budget would need to be identified and any 
necessary approval processes undertaken to allocate it if this is undertaken.   
 
EFFECT ON RESIDENTS, SERVICE USERS & COMMUNITIES 
 
What will be the effect of the recommendation? 
 
The decision will have taken into consideration the views of all residents who may be affected 
and the Council will have carried out its statutory duty to assert and protect the public’s right to 
use adopted public highway. 
 
Consultation Carried Out or Required 
 
No consultation required.  
 
CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS 
 
Legal 
 
The Council has various powers to stop up an adopted public highway. In this particular case, the 
Council would have to apply to the Magistrates Court for an order to stop up the footpath in 
accordance with Section 116 of the Highways Act 1980.  In deciding whether or not to ‘stop up’ the 
way the Court would need to be satisfied that the way was ‘unnecessary’ for public passage. This 
report shows that officers are able to demonstrate that they will have taken all appropriate action to 
ensure that the views of the public have been taken into consideration and that the Cabinet 
Member will be able to make an informed decision in line with Section 116 of the Highways Act 
1980.   
 
Following the informal consultation exercise, should the Council decide to apply to the Court to 
stop up the highway, officers should obtain further legal advice as to the procedures to be followed 
and in particular the requirements for formal statutory consultation. 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Appendix A 
 
Plan 
Photographs of the footpath 

Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 47



Page 48

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 49



Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 51



Page 52

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 53



Page 54

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 57



Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 57



Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 59



Page 60

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Great Benty - Petition requesting the removal of grassed verges to be replaced with parking bays.
	Great Benty Appendix A

	4 Charville Lane and Grosvenor Avenue: Petition requesting traffic calming measures
	Charville Lane and Grosvenor Avenue Appendix A

	5 Long Drive - Petition requesting additional traffic calming measures.
	Long drive -Appendix A

	6 Northwood High Street - Petition requesting a residents' parking scheme
	Northwood

	7 Candover Close - Petition requesting a residents' parking scheme.
	Candover Close Appendix A

	8 Airdrie Close & West Quay Drive - Petition requesting to 'stop up' adopted public footpath.
	1. Adoption records.letter john mcdonnell mp.letter john mcdonnell mp
	2. Hwy Register
	3. Petition requesting the closure of a public highway between 7 - 8 Airdrie Close
	4. Footpath 001
	4. Footpath 002
	4. Footpath 003
	4. Footpath 004
	4 Footpath View from West Quay Drive 005
	5. Letter John McDonnell MP.letter john mcdonnell mp.letter john mcdonnell mp.pdf2
	5. Letter John McDonnell MP.letter john mcdonnell mp.letter john mcdonnell mp.pdf2
	6. Letter & Plan Petitioner's Solicitor.letter & plan petitioner's solicitor.pdf3


